


Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on December 5, 2011 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey. 

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:
Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Erik Simonsen

Councilmember Glenn Douglass
Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare

Mayor Michael Beck
Also present: Michael Donohue, Solicitor, Michael Voll, Manager and Asst. Clerk Julie Picard

Presentation - Certificates of Recognition 
Mayor Beck and Council presented a Certificate of Recognition to Corporal Kevin Boyle in recognition of his 20 yrs of
service to the Lower Township Police Department.

Mayor Beck and Council presented a Certificate of Recognition to Corporal Edward Dougherty in recognition of his 21
years of service to the Lower Township Police Department.

Chief Brian Marker, on behalf of the Lower Township Police Department, thanked Corporal Boyle and Corporal
Dougherty for their service to the Lower Township Police Department and noted both officers had  been dedicated
and reliable throughout their career.

WORK SESSION
 

Discussion of Public Safety Building Review Committee 
Councilmember Conrad questioned why, after only brief discussions, this Resolution is on the agenda for
adoption.  He stated the Resolution was missing some very specific information including needing someone
from the Finance Department, a well as other professionals, on the committee.  There are financial
questions regarding the feasability of the project, questions whether or not the Township can get out of the
lease and if the Township does, what about paying for the roof.  Councilman Conrad stated specific
questions need to be asked and answered and some of this information should be included in the
Resolution.  Councilman Conrad stated if Council passes this Resolution tonight, each Councilmember will
have only two weeks to come up with a name to sit on the committee.  This council went from having a
discussion, which we all agreed on, to having a Resolution in front of us.  Mayor Beck replied if the
discussion being held tonight is a positive one, we will entertain the Resolution and move forward from
there.  Mayor Beck stated it would be impossible to list every possibility regarding the building on the
Resolution.  The committee will have to look at the feasability of the building itself and provide Council with
options.  Solicitor Donohue stated the committee can call upon any professional they deem necessary to
investigate and report back to Council.  Councilman Douglass stated Council will also have to look at
retrofitting the building being looked at as well.  Council needs to look into viable options.  Solicitor
Donohue stated if you look at paragraph seven and add the words “or alternatives,” it will encompass
everything Council is referring to.  Councilman Lare requested the appointment of members to the
committee be extended to the first meeting in January.  Councilman Lare stated this is an exploratory
committee, even though the building is very costly, it may be that at this time there are no viable
alternatives.  Solicitor Donohue stated paragraph three will be changed to reflect “the Governing Body at
their first meeting in January 2012, will approve members of the committee” and “or alternatives to the



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 2

building” will be added to paragraph seven.   Mayor Beck stated that Council will move forward with this
tonight and at the first meeting in January will provide names to be considered for the committee.   
         
Discussion on the Bayshore Heritage Byway
Mayor Beck stated he had never heard of the Bayshore Heritage Byway until October 24th when he and Bill
Galestok attended a meeting.  The firm running the project immediately recognized the problem when the
Mayor spoke at the meeting.  

Norris Clark, on behalf of Anne Salvatore and John Lauderback, addressed Council and thanked the Mayor
for bringing the Byway to their attention to review.  He stated by including Lower Township, the Byway
would pick up several significant historic, cultural and natural attractions in Lower Township including
Norberry Landing, Judge Foster’s home, the Fishing Creek School, Cox Hall Creek, The Forgotten Warriors
Vietnam Veterans Museum, The Naval Air Station, Cold Spring Village and Cemetery, Townbank, The
Ferry and Douglass Park.  

Steve Scheftz addressed Council and stated not only is Lower Township the most Historical municipality, put
also the most ignored.  Mr. Scheftz stated some of Lower Township’s most significant sights are identified as
being in other municipalities including the light house, canal and airport.  Mr. Scheftz gave a brief history of
the size and population of Lower Township compared to surrounding municipalities, and gave the history of
the Township including how William Penn resided here while exploring where to build his Philadelphia.  Mr.
Scheftz spoke on how important it is for Lower Township to be involved with this Byway.

Jody Correra addressed Council and stated she works for ANJEC, the Association of New Jersey
Environmental Commission, and stated that ANJEC is a member of the South Jersey Bayshore Coalition.  
The coalition is sponsoring the Byway and is very happy the Township is involved in the Byway.

Kathy Lauderback, representing the Lower Township Chamber of Commerce, addressed Council and gave
the Chamber’s full support to this project.  

Mayor Beck stated the Township had received letters from the Cape May County Chamber of Commerce
and Cold Spring Presbyterian Church in support of the Byway. (Letters attached to file) Mayor Beck stated
the Byway needs Lower Township and Lower Township needs the Byway.  He stated the Township needs
the opportunity to show what we have to offer including the sunsets, is there anything more valuable to offer
than the sunsets in Lower Township!  Mayor Beck stated how re-routing the Byway past the airport will
increase the tourism to the new brewery.  Government is setting the table for the community, this is a
community project and these kinds of plans will not be approved if the goal is to let people look at the
buildings from the outside, you need to get the buildings open and invite tourism in.  Lower Township is
excited to be involved in this project, we have a lot to offer and we need to be able to show it. 

Review of Consent & Regular Agenda Items

Council Comments - Councilmember Simonsen requested Resolution 2011-316 be moved to the regular
agenda. 

 Public Comment - none

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes November 21, 2011
Membership Applic. NJ State Fireman’s Association - Thomas Dunlevy - Town Bank Fire Company
Res. #2011-305 Payment of Vouchers, $455,705.70



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 3

Res. #2011-306 Resolution Acknowledging The Award to Hess Corporation and South Jersey
Energy for Electric Generation Supply Services (Bid A47) for Cape May County and
Cooperative Members (Award of Township electric supplier bid including street
lights and direct distribution accounts)

Res. #2011-307 A Resolution Supporting the Amendment to the Bayshore Heritage Byway Route
(Amendment to change the Route through Bayshore Road in Lower and add 2
spurs - Townbank/Ferry Road and Sunset Beach)

Res. #2011-308 Resolution Canceling Taxes (Surviving spouse of disabled vet)
Res. #2011-309 Resolution Refunding Taxes (1 property - duplicate payment)
Res. #2011-310 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave (L. Russo - $118,216.55 - retired Police)
Res. #2011-311 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave (K. Boyle ($69,211.68 - retired Police
Res. #2011-312 Authorizing Pay Out of Terminal Leave ( C. Horwath, $28,364.52 - retired Twp Hall
Res. #2011-313 Transfer of 2011 Appropriations ($30,000 - from Insurance to Unemployment &

Recreation)
Res. #2011-314 Rejection of Bids for One (1) 2012 6.7 TO 8.4 Cubic Yard Dump Truck with Snow

Plow (2 bids - over budget)
Res. #2011-315, Creating a Special Committee for Review of Public Safety Building Issues (Establishing a

committee to effectively assess the feasibility of the continued use of the Public
Safety Building at CMC Airport)

Motion to approve Consent Agenda moved by Councilmember Conrad, seconded by Councilmember
Simonsen.  
Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Conrad     Yes
Councilmember Simonsen Yes
Councilmember Douglass Yes
Deputy Mayor Lare Yes
Mayor Beck Yes

Regular Agenda
Res. #2011-316, Authorization for Waiver of Fees for Cape Island Masonic Lodge #30 for a Minor

Site Plan (application will be to a erect a storage shed on the property)
Motion to approve moved by Councilmember Conrad, seconded by Councilmember Lare.
Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Conrad     Yes
Councilmember Simonsen Abstain
Councilmember Douglass Yes
Deputy Mayor Lare Yes
Mayor Beck Yes

Ord. #2011-19 An Ordinance of the Township of Lower Vacating a Portion of Mulberry Road was
presented for second reading and adoption.

The Clerk announced the ordinance had been published and posted according to law and copies were
provided to any interested parties.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comments on the ordinance.

Elizabeth Wund, 3500 Bayshore Rd, read a statement into the record (copy attached) stating she will keep
her portion of the paved access open to be used for her purposes and those of delivery persons, guests and
emergency vehicles.  



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 4

Joe Winters, Scott Ave, addressed Council and questioned why we are vacating this property and why the
Township does not receive a stipend for the property.  Mayor Beck replied the Township cannot charge for
the property, the Township does not own it.  The resident owns to the middle of the street, if it ceases to be
used as a road, the resident can request the Township vacate the property, the resident can then take the
piece of land back and then will pay taxes on it.  

Michael Houck, 3408 Bybrook Drive, addressed Council and stated he is willing to take over the portion of
land and pay the estimated value of that property.

Joe Winters questioned if the property will become  build-able.  Mayor Beck replied the Township reverts the
ground back and 25 feet will be owned by Mrs. Wund, and 25 feet will be owned by Mr. Houck.  Mayor Beck
said the Township does not get these requests very often.

Councilmember Lare questioned if Ms. Wund is for or against the vacation of this portion of Mulberry Road. 
Ms. Wund replied she was advised by her attorney to not object.  Councilmember Lare stated he believes
Council needs to be very cautious in vacating public property and requested Mr. Houck explain why he
requested this.  Mr. Houck replied he plans on retiring and moving down here permanently and if he decides
to change the footprint of his property, he needs this piece of land because of the set-backs.  Deputy Mayor
Lare thanked Mr. Houck and stated he is not sure that Council should be in the business of vacating land to
suit a “one person” need.  Councilmember Simonsen questioned if Ms. Wund was against the vacation of
this piece of land.  Ms. Wound replied originally, she was against it, but her attorney pointed out to her to
protect herself, she should not object to it.  Mayor Beck stated this has gone through the zoning board and
they recommended the vacation.  The Township reached out to the State, they do not want the entrance. 
The piece of ground is going to sit there and the Township becomes responsible for it.  If it is vacated, the
Township can receive taxes on it.  In 11 yrs on Council, this is the third vacation - one specifically for a water
tower.  Councilmember Conrad stated this is a rare occasion and each request has to be looked at on a
case-by-case basis.  

Motion to approve the ordinance moved by Councilmember Douglass, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.
Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Conrad     Yes
Councilmember Simonsen No
Councilmember Douglass Yes
Deputy Mayor Lare No
Mayor Beck Yes

Ord. #2011-20 An Ordinance Amending Chapter 570, Entitled “Solid Waste” of the Code of the Township
of Lower (presented for second reading and adoption.)

The Clerk announced the ordinance had been published and posted according to law and copies were
provided to any interested parties.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comments on the ordinance. 

There being no comment, motion to approve the ordinance moved by Councilmember Simonsen, seconded
by Councilmember Douglass.    
Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Conrad     Yes
Councilman Simonsen Yes
Councilmember Douglass Yes
Deputy Mayor Lare Yes
Mayor Beck Yes



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 5

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report
November Reports

Council Comments

Councilmember Conrad thanked the Lower Township Chamber of Commerce for Hospitality Night, a
wonderful event again this year.  Rotary tree lighting was wonderful.  Sunday, December 11, Seashore
Community Church of the Nazarene will be having a candle lighting for anyone who has lost someone this
past year, at 6pm.  Friday & Saturday night at Sunset Beach, they will be having a get-together with live
music at 6pm

Councilmember  Simonsen stated the Rotary did a great job, the weather was not the greatest, but there
was a great turnout.  The entertainment was excellent for the tree lighting.  It was great to hear the veterans
speak about the things that we all should be thankful for.  Councilmember Simonsen encouraged everyone
to go and check out the brewery in the airport complex - open on Saturdays - 12-4pm.
Congratulations to the Tietleman and the high school bands for their performances in the West Cape May
Parade.  
Thursday, December 8, 7p.m. Richard M. Tietleman concert at the high school
Saturday, December 10, Veterans Memorial at Cold Springs Cemetery at noon
Wednesday, December 14, Sandman Holiday Concert       
Tuesday, December 20, Lower Cape May Regional High School Concert 7 p.m.

Councilmember Douglass stated he was not able to make the hospitality night but received great reports on
it.  

Councilmember Lare echoed the congratulations on all the great events and thanked Mrs. Claudia Kammer
for all her work on the tree lighting and the ceremony and stated what a great job Mrs. Kammer does.

Mayor Beck stated the Tree Lighting is always his favorite event and the Rotary does a great job with it.
Saturday, December 10, 7p.m.  Rotary Christmas Parade.
Lower Township Rotary Home Decorating Contest - sign up at town hall by December 15 - judging Dec 16
and/or 17th.
December 19th Council Meeting is being held at the Townbank Volunteer Fire Company at 7 p.m.
                            
Public Comments

Colleen Hughes addressed Council and questioned if the fire hall is charging the Township the customary $450.00 fee
for the use of the building.  Manager Voll replied the fire company does not charge the Township.  The Gazette
misprinted the information.  

Joe Winters addressed Council and questioned where the Township stands on the Chamber of Commerce flags. 
Manager Voll replied the Township has received an application from the electric company which the Chamber could
not fill out and Mr. Galestok is currently working on the application.  Mr. Winters also questioned if the Cox Hall
Easement papers are available to the public.  Solicitor Donohue replied it is being presented to the governing body in
closed session and if Council accepts it, it will be available.

Closed Session
Resolution 2011-317 Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Public in Accordance with the

Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A 10:4-12 (Potential



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 5, 2011

Page 6

Litigation - Baldini & Lease of Real Property - Cox Hall Drainage Easement)

Motion to approve moved by Councilmember Douglass, seconded by Councilmember Simonsen.          . 
Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Conrad     Yes
Councilmember Simonsen Yes
Councilmember Douglass Yes
Deputy Mayor Lare Yes
Mayor Beck Yes

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, motion to adjourn moved by Councilmember
Lare, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal “ayes” at 8:35 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved:





























































 PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
  
 Report for Council Meeting of 12/19/11 
  
 
Department   Name Eff. Date    Replaces Action       Title   Budgeted Item 
 

Public Safety Keeler, Jeffery  12/13/11    new hire Class II      yes 
Finance  Brewster, Maria  12/05/11 Picard, Julie  new hire Clerk Typist      yes   
 
 
 
Date of report: 12/15/11 
 
c:  Manager 

Clerk 
Payroll 
Asst. Treasurer      
Personnel Director 
Bulletin Board 
File 
































